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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Kaahumanu Church is a large blue stone structure with wall 
more than two feet thick. It has a high-pitched gable roof 
with no overhang,but the eave terminates in a small moulding 
adjacent to the top place along the wall. The gable ends 
are enclosed by wood frame structure with clapboard siding on 
the exterior. A single window is set in the gable wall at 
both the front and rear of the church. The structure is four 
bays in depth with each bay having a single tall Gothic arched 
window with the interior of the window opening splayed. 
Windows are multi-paned, double-hung wood frame with simple 
tracery in the upper part of the arch. Between each window, 
and further defining the bays are two-stage batted stone 
buttresses which reinforce the thrust placed on the wall by 
the large roof structure. Buttresses are also set diagonally 
at each corner above which the upper portion of the corner is 
articulated with rusticated quoins. An open entry porch with 
a similar pitch small gable roof is supported by the front wall 
of the church at one end and by three columns in arch form 
set on a concrete pedestal at the other end and a Gothic arch 
form is cut from the wood gable wall of the entry porch. 
Wood scallops decorate the eaves. The exterior is finished 
in plaster. Above the forward part of the church is an 
elaborate three-stage wooden belfry. The lower stage is 
square in form with small wood pilasters reaching up to a 
small hip roof from which a smaller square element with a clock 
face in each of three sides, above which a similar hip roof is 
pierced by an octagonal structure with louvered Gothic arched 
wood openings. An octagonal hip roof at a low pitch is 
pierced by a central high pitched octagonal wooden spire 
capped by a sphere. The bell tower is in the finest tradition 
of New England carpenter Gothic architecture. The building is 
extremely well-proportioned and handsome.

Entry to the church is gained by way of concrete stairs lead­ 
ing to the entry porch and through two wood panelled entry 
doors with an upper cross form set in a low arched opening. 
The interior is stucco similar to the exterior on the walls 
with a horizontal band surrounding the interior at the upper 
portion of the wall. A wood board and batten ceiling with 
panelled beams projecting below the ceiling creates a coffered 
system.

The roof is supported by an horizontal member of the roof 
structure which is tied to the roof rafters by diagonal truss 
braces and a central vertical steel tie rod. The roof struc­ 
ture is of heavy timber construction in mill sawed lumber. 
The structure for the bell tower is of extremely heavy timber 
construction with a generous amount of X-bracing diagonal 
ties, all of which are stabilized with a half twist and bolted 
to the timbers.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

(1) Architectural Significance:

The structure is an excellent example of the adaptation 
of New England style simple Gothic architecture to 
Hawaii and the use of native Hawaiian materials in this 
adaptation.

(2) Historical Significance:

The present structure is ninety-seven years old. The 
history of the congregation and the present church have 
associations with some of the more notable missionaries, 
such as Edward Bailey, Jonathan Green, Richard Armstrong, 
William Alexander, Thomas Thurston, and Daniel Conde. 
There are also some associations with important political 
figures, such as Kaahumanu.

Also, among those buried in the church's cemetery is 
Honolii, one of the native Hawaiians who returned to 
Hawaii aboard the Thaddeus with the first company of 
missionaries in 1820.

It is one of the few native Hawaiian churches still in 
existence.

HISTORIC SKETCH;

The present Kaahumanu Church is actually the fourth place of 
worship for the Wailuku congregation. The original congrega­ 
tion, which came into being in 1832, under the leadership of 
the Reverend Jonathan S. Green, was forced to hold their 
meetings in a shed. The congregation built the shed on land 
belonging to the Kahale family under a grant from King 
Kamehameha III (Liholiho).



Hawaiian Mission Children's Society, Missionary Album,
Sesquicentennial Edition 1820-1970 (Honolulu: Hawaiian 
Mission Children's Society) 3rd Ed., 1970.

Kaahumanu Church Records (Translated from Hawaiian)
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A choir loft is supported by the stone walls on three sides 
with projecting stone pilasters adjacent to the wall at the 
open side and two central square wooden columns with wooden 
handrails.

At the sanctuary end of the church is a platform raised in 
two levels. The level adjacent to the sanctuary wall has two 
rows of chairs and is surrounded on three sides by a koa wood 
balustrade with turned corner posts and wooden stairs above, 
supported below by wood structure with a moulded panel base. 
At the lower level is an elaborate carved koa wood podium, 
and three straight-backed koa wood chairs. Three lights hung 
from the ceiling have scalloped crystal globes.

The building is currently in fair condition with the basic 
structure in good condition, but in need of rehabilitation. 
It is located in a large terraced lawned area with a number 
of large trees. It faces the Court House on one of the main 
roads in Wailuku.

OTHER STRUCTURES ON THE PROPERTY

To the rear of the church is a small, stone enclosure with a 
single opening in a semi-delapidated condition. It is 
difficult to assess what the original purpose of this structure 
was.

to
Also/the rear are several grave sites. One is an arched pile 
of rock which is partially delapidated.

To the left rear of the church is a single story, wooden 
structure with a gable roof, horizontal wood clapboard siding, 
a small projecting hip shed roof over an entry porch supported 
with square wood posts and reached by wood stairs with recti­ 
linear window openings and a double entry door with an upper 
cross panelling. Above the entry is a rectilinear wood 
louvered vent. The floors and ceiling are of wood. The end 
of the building opposite the entry has a raised stage platform 
with a low arched opening flanked on either side by two semi- 
circled arched door openings set in a canted wall space 45° 
to the exterior walls and the stage opening wall. The build­ 
ing is now being used as a meeting hall for the church. It 
is a simple structure with no distinguishing architectural 
characteristics.
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During  itfs first year, Queen Kaahumanu, the kuhina-nui of the 
Kingdom and ardent convert to Christianity, visited the con­ 
gregation and asked that when the congregation built an actual 
church, it be named for her. Her request was not honored, 
however, until 1876.

The small shed meeting house soon proved too small as the 
service held there attracted as many as 3000 worshippers. 
In 1834, a larger meeting house with a thatched roof was 
erected by the congregation.

Despite the large numbers of people attending the services at 
the Wailuku Church, the actual membership tended to be quite 
small. The Wailuku Station Report for 1833-1834, for instance, 
noted that two new members had been added, making the total 
membership eleven.

During the period of the "Great Revival," 1837-1840, the 
Wailuku Church membership rose to 487, with 200 being taken 
in during the 1838-1839 year alone. The need for a larger 
and better church was apparent.

The Reverend Richard Armstrong who had replaced the Reverend 
Green as pastor in 1836, supervised the construction of two 
stone meeting houses one at Haiku, and the other at Wailuku. 
The new Wailuku Church, completed in 1840, was 100 feet by 
52 feet, and was two stories (actually one story and a gallery) 
in height.

There were problems, however. Reverend Green, who returned 
to replace Armstrong in 1840, wrote in 1841 that the roof was 
a 'failure." It had to be re-thatched in 1848 at a cost of 
$648.28.

In 1843, the Reverend Green was replaced by the Reverend E. W. 
Clark. Five years later, Clark was transferred to Kawaihao 
Church in Honolulu, and the Reverend Daniel Conde took over 
the pastorate at Wailuku. He was not popular with the church 
membership, however, and a petition was circulated calling 
for his removal. The Reverend W. P. Alexander was the congre­ 
gation's choice to become the new pastor, but he was not named 
officially until 1857.

The Reverend Alexander saw that a new church was needed. As 
early as 1866, he spoke of a fund for such a project. It was 
not until 1872, however, under the leadership of Wailuku' s

G P 0 921.724
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first native Hawaiian pastorl that the congregation began a 
serious drive to raise money for a new church.

When construction began, the work was supervised by the 
Reverend Edward Bailey. In May, 1876, the new church, finally 
named the Kaahumanu Church, was completed. The only remains 
of the old church was and is a rock retaining wall that now 
borders High Street in Wailuku.

In 1884, a tower was added, with a "fine tower clock from the 
U. S. costing $1000.00..," a gift from the Reverend Edward 
Bailey. In 1892 the chandeliers were added to the interior.

The church has remained active to the present day. In recent 
years the church has undergone repairs to the steeple^and 
roof, and is at present in need of some rather extensive 
repairs.

1 William Pulepule Kahale
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